
Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - May 18, 2009

Page 1

The regular meeting of the Township Council of the Township of Lower, County of Cape May, State of New Jersey
was held on May 18,  2009 at 7:00 p.m. in the meeting room of the Township Hall, 2600 Bayshore Road, Villas, New
Jersey.

The Clerk announced that the meeting was being held in compliance with the Open Public Meetings Act and that
adequate notice of the meeting had been provided according to law.

The following members of Council were present for roll call taken by the Clerk:

Councilmember Thomas Conrad
Councilmember Wayne Mazurek
Councilmember Glenn Douglass

Deputy Mayor Kevin Lare
Mayor Michael Beck

Also present: Anthony Monzo, Solicitor,  Kathleen McPherson, Manager and Asst. Township Clerk Horwath

Certificate of Recognition - Maud Abrams Elementary School Mock Trial
Mayor Beck read a certificate of recognition for the 3rd and 4th grade students of Maud Abrams School for their
accomplishment of winning the mock trial competition.

WORK SESSION

Review of Consent and Regular Agenda Items
Mayor Beck announced the removal of the closed session resolution from the agenda.  Councilmember Mazurek
motioned to remove, seconded by Councilmember Douglass.  The resolution was removed by verbal  �ayes �.
No comments fro m Council on the consent agenda.

Public Questions on Consent Agenda and/or Regular Agenda Items
Bill Greenfield asked if the public would still have access to Ponder Lodge if Stockton took over.
Mayor Beck said they were just supporting Stockton �s interest and though it would be a great asset to the Township.
Again Mr. Greenfield said he hoped the public would still have access.

Consent Agenda
Approval of Minutes May 4, 2009
Res. #2009-142 Payment of Vouchers, $211,433.68
Res. #2009-143 A Resolution Requesting Release of Performance Guarantee for Cape Savings Bank;

Block 297, Lots 6-12, 20.02 & 22 Escrow #P06-09-07
Res. #2009-144 Approving Seashore Community Church of the Nazarene Application to Conduct a Flea

Market for June 20th and a rain date of July 11, 2009
Res. #2009-145 Authorization for Refund of Taxes
Res. #2009-146 Requesting Change in Title, Text or Amount of Appropriation N.J.S.A. 40A:4-85 (Chapter

159, P.L. 1948) (Move Code Enforcement Official from Construction to Planning



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - May 18, 2009

Page 2

Development S & W)
Res. #2009-147 Neighborhood Preservation Program Year 1 Work Program (Areas of Caroline to Fulling

Mill)
Res. #2009-148 Resolution Supporting A Satellite Campus of the Richard M. Stockton College of New

Jersey for Environmental Studies to be Located on the Property Known as the Villas
Wildlife Management Area (VWMA)

Res. #2009-149 Resolution Approving Project Proposal between Hatch Mott MacDonald and the
Township of Lower for Engineering Service Related to Professional Engineering and
Surveying Services Proposal of Tax Map Inspection for Revaluation (Finalize corrections
to tax map as required by State)

Res. #2009-150 Insertion of Special Item of Revenue Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:4-87, Chapter 159 (Clean
Communities Grant - $59,535.96 )

Res. #2009-151 Insertion of Special Item of Revenue Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:4-87, Chapter 159 (Click It
or Ticket Grant - $4,000.00)

Res. #2009-152 Insertion of Special Item of Revenue Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:4-87, Chapter 159 (NJ
Emergency Management Grant $5,000.00) (Under the EMA guideline this money is to be
used in addition to the current Emergency Management Budget to augment the program)

Res. #2009-153 A Resolution Requesting Release of Maintenance Guarantee for Villas Super
Wawa(Store #953), Major Site Plan; Block 216, Lots 5,6, 35-37, 38.01, 38.02 & 39;
Escrow Z01-05-01

Res. #2009-154 Approving North Cape May Elks Application to Conduct a Flea Market for May 30, 2009
and a Rain Date of May 31, 2009

Res. #2009-155 Resolution Approving Application for Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant
(Application for $31,275 for ammunition, vehicle & extended warranty for Police)

Councilmember Mazurek  motioned to adopt the consent agenda,  seconded by Councilmember Conrad.  The
consent agenda was adopted by the following roll call vote: Councilmember Conrad,  �yes �, Councilmember
Mazurek,  �yes �, Councilmember Douglass,  �yes �, Deputy Mayor  Lare,  �yes �, Mayor Beck ,  �yes �.
 

Regular Agenda

Res. #2009-156* Resolution Opposing the Closure of Our Lady Star of the Sea Catholic School
Deputy Mayor Lare motioned to adopt the resolution,  seconded by Councilmember Conrad.  The resolution was
adopted by the following roll call vote: Councilmember Conrad,  �yes �, Councilmember Mazurek,  �yes �,
Councilmember Douglass,  �yes �, Deputy Mayor  Lare,  �yes �, Mayor Beck ,  �abstain �.
Councilmember Conrad said when St. Raymonds was closed it was stated they would not close Star of the Sea for
at least 5 years.  He said now after 2 years it was closing and now the kids would have to go to St. Ann �s in
Wildwood.

Ordinance #2009-06,  �An Ordinance of the Township of Lower Establishing Requirement for Installation of a Key
Box Rapid Entry System on Certain Industrial, Commercial and Residential Structures �  was presented for second 
reading and public hearing.  The Clerk announced the ordinance was posted and published according to law and
copies were available in the Clerk �s Office.
Mayor Beck opened the meeting for comment on the ordinance.
Counci lmember Conrad said there were a lot  of questions regarding the ordinance and the people real ly d idn �t



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - May 18, 2009

Page 3

understand it.
Dave Perry, Fire Official said the information was going out and the reason the ordinance came about was the Fire
Chiefs and Fire Departments found out about the system and it was approved in other areas.  He said for fire safety
the key was early entry and detection, faster entry the better safety for everyone.  He said over 1 year ago other
areas had adopted a similar ordinance.  
Mr. Perry said New Jersey had adopted an International  Fire Code on February 1 and a section of the code stated
you were required to have a key box.  He said the reason for the rapid entry key was for minimizing property
damage and fire safety.  He said the key security was a big issue.  He did research and saw how other municipalities
handled it.  He stated the key would be in the fire apparatus and you would need a code to get to it.  He said you
needed a code to get into the box, the data base recorded the pin number, the time and how long it was out of the
box and the information was downloaded monthly.  He said the system could be wired to an alarm that would notify
dispatch.
Councilmember Conrad stated to access the box it required a pin number and would be limited to a small number of
firefighters.
Councilmember Mazurek said the problem was a mandatory issue scared people.  He said Mr. Perry did a great job
of educating Council, but the businesses were not educated as to all the safeguards that were in place with the
system.  He said a few businesses he spoke to in his area were against it.  He suggested voluntary compliance for
the first years and then move to mandatory.  He felt the education was from the top down and it needed to be from
the bottom up.
Mr. Perry said he had letters to send out and they had to enforce the fire code.
Mayor Beck said it was already State regulated regardless of the ordinance it had to be enforced.
Deputy Mayor Lare asked if residential homes that had alarms were required to get a lock box.
Mr. Perry said the State required for all but owner occupied single family homes.
Deputy Mayor Lare questioned a section that stated  �any other structure at the Fire Officials discretion �.
Mr. Perry said that language was right out of the code.
Mayor Beck said firefighters safety was important and he had received a lot of calls on the ordinance and many of
the business owners were under tough times.
Councilmember Douglass also stated he received multiple calls and the key box was a concern.  He said he
understood the boxes were necessary.  He said people with fire suppression systems wanted to know why they
needed one.  He stated other business said they would rather have their door broken down than have a key outside. 
He questioned the time frame to comply.
Mr. Perry said many ordinances stated 90 days but felt that was not enough time so they set it at 180 days from
notification.
Councilmember Douglass asked if it could  be voluntary for now since other towns had it on a voluntary basis.  He
suggested the letter go out before the ordinance.  
Lou McGonigle, Fire Chief of Townbank said many calls activated when you arrived on scene there was no smoke,
and things were not visible.   He stated you couldn �t make access and you could not take the door down.  If you
physically saw something then you can make access.   
Councilmember Mazurek asked about false alarms.
Chief McGonigle said sometimes alarms went off due to cooking, etc. alarms did what they were supposed to.
Councilmember Douglass asked if the code would permit if an alarm continually went off, could they mandate it
then?
Mr. Perry said many people were here only a few months of the  year.  He said the biggest threat were commercial
buildings.
Mayor Beck said if it was state mandated then there wasn �t an issue.



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - May 18, 2009

Page 4

Mr. Perry said it would take over a year to get everyone in compliance.
Councilmember Conrad asked if people could be cited now under the State Code.
Councilmember Lare asked if the Township ordinance covered more than the State �s requirements?
Mr. Perry said the Grand had already bought a box.
Mayor Beck stated they were covered under the State requirement so they didn �t have an option.
Mr. Perry said he had a sample of the box and key holder to show Council.  He explained how it worked and who
would have PIN numbers to access it.  They also discussed the security and stated which surrounding municipalities
had this type of ordinance.
Deputy Mayor Lare asked if the local ordinances in other Municipalities were mandatory.
Solicitor Monzo said residential was voluntary.

Public Comment on Ordinance #2009-06
Joe Winters asked about the installation cost and maintenance since this area had salt air.
Mr. Perry said it would be done by the owner or occupant of the building and they would check yearly with the
owners.  He also said any time a box would be opened he would check the next day with the owner and make sure
everything was alright.
Mr. Winters asked how it would be mounted?
Mr. Perry said he believed it would be drilled through the back and bolted to the studs.
John Fleming of 8 Andrielle Lane said he was against the ordinance which stepped on his right.  He didn �t want
anyone in his home when they were not there.  He said it was a violation of the 4th and 5th amendment.  He said it
was to broad and needed to be revisited.
Councilmember Conrad tried to explain the benefits of the ordinance.
Janet Pitts of  Vil las fel t it  should be tabled for now as there were so many quest ions .  She said she didn �t
understand why an ordinance was needed if there was a State Code.  She asked they look into it more before they
adopt it.
Councilmember Conrad said they were making people aware and were giving them 180 days to comply.
Pete Cirrinicione of Cold Spring said he had major concerns.  He said it was unclear as to what structures were
covered and why didn �t homes without alarms  need it.  He asked if it was needed or not as the ordinance stated all
new construction would be required.  He said the Township ordinance should mirror the State Code.
Ray Navotine said he had a single family home with a security system he asked if he would be exempt.
Mr. Perry said the main target area would not be owner occupied.
Mr. Navotine asked if he had a box and wanted it linked to his security system there would be an additional expense.
Ernie Utsch said he hoped Council would take more time to consider the ordinance.  He didn �t like having a key
outside or anyone coming into his home.
Fire Chief McGonigal said he understood it came down to money.  He said they were looking at an alarm system
cost of $25.00 - $30.00 a month or around $300.00 a year for protection.  He said it boggled his mind that people
said to break the door down.
Deputy Mayor Lare said he didn �t feel that it was all about the money.  He said the ordinance was loose and had to
be tightened up.  He said Section 1 stated  �any other structure as determined by the Fire Official � was a catch all. 
He said the Township needed to address false alarms and provide a stiff penalty.
Mayor Beck said maybe a stiff penalty for those calls.  He said it was a done deal with the State and businesses
would be enforced by the State.  He said everyone agreed the intentions were there and they wanted it done right. 
He wanted something that was acceptable for all.  He said they would like to review the State Code and look into the
concerns raised.
Councilmember Mazurek said the residents didn �t understand the ordinance and it was one more intrusion by the



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - May 18, 2009

Page 5

government.  He felt educating the people was the key. 
Dave Lepor of Erma Fire Company said he understood Council received many calls and said Council was to
represent everyone.  He said 3 Fire Companies were present and they were to represent them also.
Mayor Beck said he received more calls on the lock box ordinance than any other issue since he had been back.  
Councilmember Douglass said he had received many call also, he agreed it was a good concept but the ordinance
presented to them was too broad.
Mr. Perry said the ordinance wasn �t as broad as the State Code.
Councilmember Conrad said it was correct that Council couldn �t answer all the questions that needed to be
answered.  He said it needed to be tightened up.
Mr. Lepor said he had seen that before, a small group of people steer the process and everything came  to a halt. 
He said he was in the fire service and never asked Council for anything and that �s what they received.  
Kendall Kennedy of Erma and Safety Officer for Erma Fire Company said when they receive a call 30 - 40
volunteers show up in their own cars and then had to wait for the key holder to show up.  He said sometimes they
had to wait for 30 minutes then if they got another call they couldn �t  respond and had to call another company to
cover for them.
Mr. Kennedy said the code was adopted in February and it had to be enforced and go with what it said.
Art Treon of North Cape May and the Emergency Management Coordinator for Lower Township, said his concern
was they needed to act on certain issues in a time frame.  He asked how long they were going to table it.  He said
the businesses needed to check with their insurance company and maybe they could get a discount.
Councilmember Conrad said he felt like it was going to be tabled and he mentioned the Chief wanted the schools
included.
Councilmember Mazurek said 2 weeks and 6 days ago they were under the impression everything was alright and
he didn �t realize it was a dire emergency to adopt the ordinance in 2 weeks time.  He said it wasn �t a long time to
make a decision and didn �t understand the emergency.
Councilmember Mazurek said Dave Perry needed to get out and do what the State required and Council could look
at what changes needed to be made to the ordinance.
Councilmember Douglass agreed.  He didn �t want to delay the ordinance for an extended period of time but felt
some issues needed to be clarified.  He wanted to work to get the ordinance comfortable with Council and the
residents.
Deputy Mayor Lare agreed with Councilmember Mazurek �s comments.  He said  maybe they could phase it in and
suggested the Solicitor do a side by side comparison with the State Code and ordinance.
Mayor Beck said he would like to see the ordinance tabled and see what was mandated and what wasn �t.  He would
like to make it voluntary and he commented they had to do it right.

Councilmember Douglass motioned to table the ordinance, seconded by Councilmember Mazurek.  The ordinance
was tabled by the following roll call vote: Councilmember Conrad,  �yes �, Councilmember Mazurek,  �yes �,
Councilmember Douglass,  �yes �, Deputy Mayor Lare,  �yes �, Mayor Beck,  �yes �.
 

Administrative Reports
April Reports - Animal Control, CFO, Code Enforcement, Construction Official, Dog Licensing, Municipal Clerk,
Municipal Court, Municipal Judge, Police, Public Works, Tax Collector & Vital Statistics



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - May 18, 2009

Page 6

Council Comments
Councilmember Conrad said on May 30th there would be a bike rodeo and auction and it was open to the kids first. 
He announced on May 23rd there would be a beach clean up at 10:00 a.m. along the bay.  
Councilmember Conrad said he would hold a  �Meet Your Councilman Ward One � on June 8th it was going to be an
informal meeting, just to answer any questions the residents may have.

Ponder Lodge
Councilmember Mazurek said in reviewing the draft plan by the State he read from the plan what the State had
proposed.  He said they had done nothing yet.  

Art Show at Lower Cape May Regional High School
Councilmember Mazurek announced on May 28th there would be an art show at the high school and it was free.  He
said there was a lot of talent out there and it was a terrific show.

Fire Tower #23 Dedication
Councilmember Douglass said Fire Tower #23 was now open.   He stated it was a nice dedication and it would be an 
asset to the Township.

Leaf and Branch schedule
Deputy Mayor Lare said the leaf and branch schedule for Spring was available. 

Outfall Extensions
Deputy Mayor Lare said they were waiting for the permit approval from the State for the outfall extension project.

Recycling
Deputy Mayor Lare said weekly recycling began on May 26th and then will continue with yearly recycling.

Grass Clippings
Mayor Beck said the grass clippings would be collected the day after trash day.  He said they could be out in bags or
cans and stickers were ordered.

Fire Tower #23 Dedication
Mayor Beck said the Fire Tower was great to see and along the way to the top there were old photographs that were
nice to see.

Town Watch Meeting
Mayor Beck said there was a good turn out for the Town Watch Program and they were moving to a pro-active
program.  He said in 6 - 8 weeks there would be another meeting.
Mayor Beck mentioned there would be a Memorial Day Service at the VFW at 11:00 a.m. 

8:35 Public Comments

Leaf and Branch Pick Up
Art Treon said he would like to see an ordinance that stated you couldn �t  do whatever you want regarding the leaves
and branches.
Mayor Beck said they were working on trying to tighten up the schedule and get it under control.



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - May 18, 2009

Page 7

Councilmember Douglass motioned to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Councilmember Mazurek the meeting
unanimously adjourned by verbal  �ayes � at 8:45 p.m.

__________________________ __________________________
           Mayor Township Clerk

Approved: June 1, 2009


